
AGENDA  

BLOOMINGTON PROPERTY MAINTENANCE REVIEW BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING - 4:00 P.M. 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 23, 2020 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

109 EAST OLIVE STREET 

BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. PUBLIC COMMENT

4. MINUTES:

Consideration, review and approval of Minutes from the April 25, 2019

Quarterly Meeting.

5. REGULAR AGENDA

A. Discussion on proposed adoption of the 2018 International Code Council 

Property Maintenance Code and amendments to the Bloomington City Code 

Chapter 45. 

B. Discussion on the Neighborhood Preservation Ordinance for registering 

derelict buildings and premises. 

6. OLD BUSINESS

7. NEW BUSINESS

8. ADJOURNMENT

For further information contact: 

Carey Snedden, Code Enforcement Division Manager 

Department of Community Development 

Government Center 

115 E. Washington Street, Bloomington, IL 61701 

Phone: (309) 434-2345 Fax: (309) 434-2801 

E-mail: csnedden@cityblm.org 



1 

DRAFT MINUTES 

PROPERTY MAINTENANCE REVIEW BOARD 

Thursday, April 25, 2019, 4:00 P.M.   

Council Chambers, City Hall 

109 East Olive Street, Bloomington, Illinois 

Members present: Mr. John Capodice, Mr. Mark Fetzer, Mr. Rodney Smithson, 

Mr. Kelby Cumpston 

Members absent: Mr. Robert Garcia 

Also present: Mr. Carey Snedden, Code Enforcement Division Manager 

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Capodice called the meeting to order at 4:02 p.m. 

2. ROLL CALL

Manager Snedden called roll and a quorum was established with four members present.  

3. PUBLIC COMMENT

Chairman Capodice asked for public comment from the audience for those items that were not 

listed on the meeting agenda.  There were no public comments made.  

4. MINUTES

A. Consideration, review and approval of Minutes from the January 24, 2019 Quarterly 

Meeting. 

Mark Fetzer made a motion for approval.  Motion was seconded by Chairman Capodice.  The 

motion was approved by a 4-0 vote as follows: Mr. Capodice— yes; Mr. Fetzer— yes; Mr. 

Smithson—yes; Mr. Cumpston—yes. 

B. Consideration, review and approval of Minutes from the September 5, 2018 Special  

Meeting. 

Mark Fetzer made a motion for approval.  Motion was seconded by Chairman Capodice.  The 

motion was approved by a 4-0 vote as follows: Mr. Capodice— yes; Mr. Fetzer— yes; Mr. 

Smithson—yes; Mr. Cumpston—yes. 

5. REGULAR AGENDA

A. Code Enforcement Pamphlet 

Manger Snedden presented the preliminary draft of intended overall Community Development, 

Code Enforcement Division Pamphlet. Asked for board input. 

Mr. Fetzer expressed would be nice to hand out to first time property owners, property 

management companies and realtor associations. 



2 

Mr. Garcia suggested this pamphlet could potentially be sent out in the water billing procedure for 

first time water users. Also made suggestions of adding typical timelines to inspection process 

portion and suggested adding the solid waste collection center hours to the pamphlet. 

B. Rental Program Checklist  

Manager Snedden presented registration form and checklist information. 

Mr. Fetzer asked to add Carbon/Smoke to checklist. 

Mr. Cumpston asked for clarification of location on website. Asked for accessibility of checklist 

information be available to tenants.  

6. OLD BUSINESS

A. Ordinance 2019-14 

Manager Snedden presented final language as adopted by the council of the ordinance amending 

the city code requiring Carbon Monoxide Detectors. 

B. Sample Compliance Order 

Manager Snedden presented a sample of a Compliance Order at boards request. 

Mr. Capodice asked for clarification of Administrative Court procedures as it pertains to appeal. 

Mr. Snedden explained the upfront procedures. And the reasons a case may not be presented to the 

PMRB. Requested PMRB opportunity be added to the code enforcement pamphlet. 

7. NEW BUSINESS

A.  Chairman Capodice expressed his desire to have the word “mortgage” struck from the code. 

Transfer of Ownership Requirements – Chapter 45, Section 107.6 

Mr. Snedden explained it would be a code change. 

B.  Board asked to eliminate the two tenant seats due to past inability to fill seats. Mr. Snedden 

read what the current board make up is currently and stated the request would take council action. 

8. ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Garcia made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Mr. Fetzer. The motion passed unanimously 

by voice vote. Meeting was adjourned at 4:37 PM. 

Prepared (5/3/2019) 



TO: Property Maintenance Review Board 

FROM:  Bob Mahrt, Community Development Director 

DATE:  January 23, 2020 

RE: Discussion on proposed adoption of the 2018 International Property Maintenance 

Code and amendments to the Bloomington City Code Chapter 45. 

BACKGROUND:  

The Property Maintenance Review Board (PMRB) has the authority to make advisory 

recommendations to the City Council concerning amendments to the Property Maintenance Code, 

Chapter 45 of the City Code. On February 24, 2014, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2014-

12 which amended Chapter 45 and adopted the 2012 International Property Maintenance Code 

(IPMC).  (A copy of the Ordinance is attached for review).   

The ICC publishes new editions of the codes every three years.  It should be understood, that the 

City did not adopt the 2015 edition of the ICC codes.  There is a need to illustrate the changes 

between the various editions of the codes (2012-2015-2018) for public awareness.   

The Community Development Department is simultaneously assisting the Building Board of 

Appeals (BBA) and the PMRB on updating to the 2018 International Code Council family of 

codes.  This coordination effort is intended to provide adequate opportunities for review of the 

updated editions of the ICC family of codes and provide appropriate public outreach.  It is the 

intent of the City to adopt and implement the new edition of the codes by May 1, 2020.     

ITEMS FOR CONTINUED DISCUSSION:  

1. Public Outreach:  The Board should discuss the appropriate mechanisms for public

outreach and participation.  Similar to the BBA, the Board may consider the need to schedule 

monthly meetings through Winter/Spring 2020, outline opportunities to public awareness on the 

pending updates, and for Community Development Department Staff to coordinate outreach 

efforts with the Home Builder’s Association and other organizations (i.e. Board of Realtors, 

labor unions, contractor associations). 

2. Timeline:  The Board should consider the potential timeline for review and adoption of the

IPMC.  The Board would have the opportunity to amend or extend the timeline, as may be 

necessary.  (Please see the draft of the Potential Timeline).  

3. Process:  Staff has prepared a spreadsheet outlining the specific changes to the various

editions of the codes to assist the Board and the community to better understand the progressive 



changes over time.  (A copy is attached for review). Staff will review the spreadsheet with the 

Board to determine if any exceptions from the 2018 IPMC should be considered.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: That the Property Maintenance Review Board discuss the 

proposed adoption of the 2018 International Property Maintenance Code and amendments to the 

Bloomington City Code Chapter 45.      



















INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE AMENDMENTS (IPMC 2012 - IPMC 2015 -IPMC 2018) ADDITION/DELETION/MODIFICATION/CLARIFICATION

ADMINISTRATION CHAPTER 1

SECTION NUMBER SECTION HEADING AMENDMENT SUMMARY

101.2 SCOPE MODIFICATION ADDED AUTHORIZED AGENT FOR RESPONSIBILTY OF PREMISES

102.2 MAINTENANCE MODIFICATION ADDED AUTHORIZED AGENT FOR RESPONSIBILTY OF PREMISES

102.3 APPLICATION OF OTHER CODES MODIFICATION ADDED REFERENCE TO "INTERNATIONAL EXISTING BUILDING CODE"

103.4 LIABILITY MODIFICATION ADDED  "CIVILLY OR CRIMINALLY"

103.4.1 LEGAL DEFENSE MODIFICATION AMMENDED SEC. 103.4 TO BE TWO CODE SECTIONS

104.3 RIGHT OF ENTRY MODIFICATION ADDED AUTHORIZED AGENT FOR RESPONSIBILTY OF PREMISES

105.1 MODIFICATIONS MODIFICATION ADDED AUTHORIZED AGENT FOR RESPONSIBILTY OF PREMISES

105.2 ALTERNATIVE MATERIALS, DESIGN AND METHODS ADDITION ADDED SENTENCE FOR WHAT TO DO WHEN CONSTRUCTION IS NOT APPROVED

105.2 ALTERNATIVE MATERIALS, DESIGN AND METHODS CLARIFICATION  REVISED DEFINITIONS AND NEW REQUIREMENTS FOR ALT. MAT. DESIGN AND METHODS

107.2 FORM MODIFICATION ADDED OWNER'S AUTHORIZED AGENT

107.6 TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP MODIFICATION ADDED OWNER'S AUTHORIZED AGENT

108.2 CLOSING OF VACANT STRUCTURES MODIFICATION ADDED OWNER'S AUTHORIZED AGENT

108.2.1 AUTHORITY TO DISCONNECT SERVICE UTILITIES MODIFICATION ADDED OWNER'S AUTHORIZED AGENT

108.3 NOTICE MODIFICATION ADDED OWNER'S AUTHORIZED AGENT

108.6 ABATEMENT METHODS MODIFICATION ADDED OWNER'S AUTHORIZED AGENT

109.5 COSTS OF EMERGENCY REPAIRS MODIFICATION ADDED OWNER'S AUTHORIZED AGENT

110.1 GENERAL MODIFICATION ADDED OWNER'S AUTHORIZED AGENT

110.3 FAILURE TO COMPLY MODIFICATION ADDED OWNER'S AUTHORIZED AGENT

112.2 ISSUANCE MODIFICATION ADDED OWNER'S AUTHORIZED AGENT

DEFINITIONS CHAPTER 2

SECTION NUMBER SECTION HEADING AMENDMENT SUMMARY

202 GENERAL DEFINITIONS (APPROVED) MODIFICATION CHANGED DEF. FROM "APPROVED TO ACCEPTABLE"

202 GENERAL DEFINITIONS (COST OF SUCH DEMOLITION OR EMERGENCY REPAIRS) ADDITION ADDED DEF OF "COST OF SUCH DEMOLITION OR EMERGENCY REPAIR"

202 GENERAL DEFINITIONS (HISTORIC BUILDING) ADDITION ADDED DEF OF "HISTORIC BUILDING"

202 GENERAL DEFINITIONS (INFESTATION) MODIFICATION ADDED "RODENTS"

202 GENERAL DEFINITIONS (LABELED) MODIFICATION CHANGED "INSPECTION AGENCY TO APPROVED AGENCY"

202 GENERAL DEFINITIONS (PUBLIC WAY) CLARIF/ADD CLARIFY "UNOBSTRUCTED" ; ADDED CLEAR WIDTH AND HIGHT OF 10 FEET

202 GENERAL DEFINITIONS (STRUCTURE) MODIFICATION REMOVED "OR A PORTION THEREOF"

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS     CHAPTER 3

SECTION NUMBER SECTION HEADING AMENDMENT SUMMARY

NO CHANGES IN CHAPTER 3 FROM 2012 TO 2018

LIGHT, VENTILATION, AND OCCUPANCY LIMITATIONS    CHAPTER 4

SECTION NUMBER SECTION HEADING AMENDMENT SUMMARY



NO CHANGES IN CHAPTER 4 FROM 2012 TO 2018

PLUMBING FACILITIES AND FIXTURE REQUIREMENTS    CHAPTER 5

SECTION NUMBER SECTION HEADING AMENDMENT SUMMARY

505.5 NONPOTABLE WATER REUSE SYSTEMS ADDITION ADDED NEW CODE SECTION 505.5

505.5.1 ABANDONMENT OF SYSTEMS ADDITION ADDED NEW CODE SECTION 505.5.1

MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS       CHAPTER 6

SECTION NUMBER SECTION HEADING AMENDMENT SUMMARY

603.1 MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT AND APPLIANCES MODIFICATION CHANGED SECTION HEADING TO "MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT AND APPLIANCES

FIRE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS

SECTION NUMBER SECTION HEADING AMENDMENT SUMMARY

703.1 FIRE-RESISTANCE-RATED ASSEMBLIES MODIFICATION MAINTAINING INTEGRITY OF REQUIRED FIRE RATED ASSEMBLIES

703.2 UNSAFE CONDITIONS ADDITION MAINTAINING FIRE RESISTANT COMPONENTS TO ORIGINAL LEVEL OF SAFETY

703.3 MAINTENANCE ADDITION OWNER REQUIREMENTS FOR MAINTENANCE OF FIRE RATED COMPONENTS AND ASSEMBLIES

703.3.1 FIRE BLOCKING AND DRAFT STOPPING ADDITION MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR FIREBLOCKING

703.3.2 SMOKE BARRIERS AND SMOKE PARTITIONS ADDITION MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR SMOKE BARRIERS

703.3.3 FIRE WALL, FIRE BARRIERS, AND FIRE PARTITIONS ADDITION MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR FIRE WALLS

703.4 OPENING PROTECTIVES MODIFICATION 2018 IPMC RE-WRITE AND RE-NUMBER OF CODE SECTION 703.2 TO 703.4

703.4.1 SIGNS ADDITION SIGNAGE REQUIREMENTS FOR FIRE RATED DOORS

703.4.2 HOLD-OPEN DEVICES AND CLOSERS ADDITION MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR FIRE RATED DOOR DEVICES

703.4.3 DOOR OPERATION ADDITION MAINTAINING FIRE DOOR SWING REQUIREMENTS

703.5 CEILINGS ADDITION MAINTAINING ACOUSTICAL CEILINGS THAT ARE PART OF A FIRE RATED SYSTEM

703.6 TESTING ADDITION FIRE DOOR TESTING REQUIREMENTS

703.7 VERTICAL SHAFTS ADDITION FIRE PROTECTION REQUIREMENTS FOR VERTICAL SHAFTS

703.8 OPENING PROTECTIVE CLOSERS ADDITION MAINTAINING SELF CLOSING OPENINGS

704.1 INSPECTION, TESTING AND MAINTENANCE ADDITION REQUIREMENTS FOR FIRE DETECTION, ALARMS AND EXTINGUISHING SYSTEMS

704.1.1 INSTALLATION ADDITION FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEM INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS

704.1.2 FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION ADDITION 2015 IPMC ADDED NEW CODE SECTION 704.1.2 ELIMINATED IN 2018 IPMC

704.1.2 REQUIRED FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS ADDITION REFERENCE TO IFC AND IBC CODES FOR FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS

704.1.3 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS ADDITION FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS REQUIRING INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE

704.2 SINGLE- AND MULTIPLE-STATION SMOKE ALARMS ADDITION 2015 IPMC ADDED NEW CODE SECTION 704.2 ELIMINATED IN 2018 IPMC

704.2 STANDARDS ADDITION FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEM MAINTENANCE STANDARDS

704.2.1 WHERE REQUIRED ADDITION 2015 IPMC ADDED NEW CODE SECTION 704.2.1 ELIMINATED IN 2018 IPMC

704.2.1 RECORDS ADDITION FIRE SYSTEM RECORD REQUIREMENTS

704.2.1.1 GROUP R-1 DELETION ELIMINATED IN 2018 IPMC

704.2.1.2 GROUPS R-2, R-3, R-4 AND I-1 DELETION ELIMINATED IN 2018 IPMC

704.2.1.3 INSTALLATION NEAR COOKING APPLIANCES DELETION ELIMINATED IN 2018 IPMC

704.2.1.4 INSTALLATION NEAR BATHROOMS DELETION ELIMINATED IN 2018 IPMC



704.2.2 INTERCONNECTION DELETION ELIMINATED IN 2018 IPMC

704.2.2 RECORDS INFORMATION ADDITION FIRE SYSTEM RECORD REQUIREMENTS

704.2.3 POWER SOURCE DELETION ELIMINATED IN 2018 IPMC

704.2.4 SMOKE DETECTION SYSTEM DELETION ELIMINATED IN 2018 IPMC

704.3 SYSTEM OUT OF SERVICE ADDITION FIRE DEPT AND CODE OFFICIAL NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

704.3.1 EMERGENCY IMPAIRMENTS ADDITION EMERGENCY ACTION REQUIREMENTS

704.4 REMOVAL OF OR TAMPERING WITH EQUIPMENT ADDITION UNLAWFUL TAMPERING CODE

704.4.1 REMOVEAL OF OR TAMPERING WITH APPURTENANCES ADDITION UNLAWFUL TAMPERING CODE

704.4.2 REMOVEAL OF EXISTING OCCUPANT-USE HOSE LINES ADDITION

704.4.3 TERMINATION OF MONITORING SERVICE ADDITION NOTICE OF TERMINATION REQUIREMENTS

704.5 FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION ADDITION FD CONNECTION REQUIREMENTS

704.5.1 FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION ACCESS ADDITION FD CONNECTION ACCESS REQUIREMENTS

704.5.2 CLEAR SPACE AROUND CONNECTIONS ADDITION CLEAR SPACE REQUIREMENTS

704.7 SINGLE- AND MULTIPLE-STATION SMOKE ALARMS ADDITION ALARM TESTING AND MAINTENANCE

705.1 & 705.2 CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS AND DETECTION ADDITION CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS AND DETECTION REQUIREMENTS

REFERENCED STANDARDS    CHAPTER 8

SECTION NUMBER SECTION HEADING AMENDMENT SUMMARY

APPENDIX A - BOARDING STANDARD

SECTION NUMBER SECTION HEADING AMENDMENT SUMMARY










